United Nations A\c.6/53/SR.25

General Assembly Distr.: General

V Fifty-third session 9 March 1999

N\ o English
=7 (Official Records Original: Spanish

Sixth Committee

Summary record of the 25th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Wednesday, 11 November, 1998, at 10 a.m.

Chairman Mr. Enkhsaikhan. . ......... . @hgolia)

Contents
Agenda item 155: Measures to eliminate international terrorism

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-82276 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9882276E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.6/53/SR.25<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.6/53/SR.25

The meeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m added others. Finally, the “Friends of the Chairman” had
prepared a proposal (A/C.6/53/WG.I/CRP.35/Add.1), which

. o . ) was contained in annex | to the report of the Working Group
Agenda item 155: Measures to eliminate international (a/c.6/53/L.4).

terrorism (A/53/37, A/53/66-S/1998/115, A/53/71, . _ . .
A/53/72-S/1998/156, A/53/95-5/1998/311, A/53/117— 2-  1he new legal instrument was unique in that it was
S/1998/371, A/53/131—S/1998/435, A/53/285, A/53/3009roact|ve rather than reactive and that it defined certain
A/53/314 and Corr.1 and 2 and Add.1, A/53/341, offences which States must criminalize, if they had not done
A/53/371-S/1998/848, A/53/489, A/53/532—S/1998/9845° already, and made them subject to a prosecute-or-extradite
A/53/552-S/1998/1010, A/53/560—S/1998/1019 and scheme. It also contained provisions on mutual assistance, the

A/53/646: A/C.6/53/2. AIC.6/53/3. A/C.6/53/4 return of materials and other forms of cooperation. The new
A/C.6/53/5. A/C.6/53/6. A/C.6/53/7. A/C.6/53/9-and  Instrument was notable in that it extended the scope of article
A/C.6/53/L.,4) ' ' ’ 2, which dealt with offences, to include the intent to cause

substantial damage to the environment. Although some
delegations would have preferred a specific reference to
Eadioactive wastes, ultimately no such reference had been
included. The criminal law provisions of the convention were

ed at ensuring the prosecution and punishment of those

1. Mr.Kirsch (Chairman of the Ad Hoc Committee and
the Working Group of the Sixth Committee) said that the A
Hoc Committee to elaborate a draft internationaheention

on the suppression of acts of nuclear terrorism had bed

established by the United Nations General Assembly in 19 o committed offences of nuclear terrorism. The ttiadal

as one of numerous measures adopted by the United NatiBr['gsecrlljt;er;or?exltraphte p;rowsmn's' hac; bej[ﬁn streglgther}ed
in recent years in order to strengthen the international le eroug € Inclusion ot a provision for the conditiona
framework to combat terrorism. The Ad Hoc Committee hal rrender of an accused by a State which did not normally

held its second session in February 1998 and had continlfé%.rad'te its own nationals. Another notable development,

its work during a two-week period in September and Octob th'Ch hagl first appgared |n.the anvennon for the
1998, at the fifty-third session of the General Assembly, i uppression of Terrorist Bombings, stipulated that States

a Working Group of the Sixth Committee. The session of t art.ies could not refuse a request for extradition or judicial
Ad Hoc Committee had been divided between a gener%?s.l.Stance sqlely on the grounds that the offence had been
discussion of the form and content of the new instrument aRglltlca”y motivated.

afirst reading of each of the provisions of a dradhwention 3.  Article 18 imposed on States Parties the obligation to
helpfully prepared by the Russian Federation. It had beeansult with each other concerning modalities for the return
generally agreed that any such instrument should complemefinaterials and exhorted them to provide mutual assistance
and be consistent with existing international instrumenttg the maximum extent possible. With respect to the scope of
particularly the Convention on the Physical Protection @fpplication, covered by the final preambular paragraph and
Nuclear Material and the International Convention for therticle 4, it had been provisionally decided to repeat the
Suppression of Terrorist Bombings. There had also beprovisions of the Convention for the Suppression of Terrorist
broad support for the proposal that in the area of internatiorB®mbings, although there had been dissenting positions
criminal law, the new instrument should draw heavily on theshich were reflected in the report of the Working Group. He
latter of those conventions, which was the most recehoped that the informal discussions of that question, which
anti-terrorism instrument to be developed, without prejudidead continued since the conclusion of the Working Group’s
to the possibility of departing from some of its provisions isession, would lead to a solution that would enable the
there was good reason to do so. On the other hand, discusgi@mmittee to submit a complete text to the General Assembly
had indicated the need for considerably more work cand to recommend its adoption. In his view, the unresolved
provisions specific to nuclear terrorism. In light of thoséssues with respect to nuclear terrorism did not justify another
discussions, the members of the Bureau of the Committee rssbsion of the Ad Hoc Committee and should be resolved
held an informal inter-sessional meeting and had draftedlaring the current session of the General Assembly.

new text for most of the provisions of a new conventiory . Tejeira (Panama), speaking on behalf of the Rio
which had been submitted to the working group as @rgyp, said that ever since its establishment, the Group had

discussion paper presented by the “Friends of the Chairmaggmqgnstrated its firm commitment to peace and security in

On the basis of discussion of those and subsequent provisiog, nemisphere and its opposition to terrorism. At the twelfth
the “Friends of the Chairman” had submitted yet anothey,ymit of the Rio Group, held in Panama in September 1998,
discussion paper, which had amended some provisions 3fd Heads of State and Government had reiterated their



A/C.6/53/SR.25

condemnation of terrorism, which posed a threat to thege had concluded an agreement on extradition between States

and security of society and to the full exercise of collective
and individual rights. They had also expressed concern at the

persistence of terrorist acts and abhorrence of the recent

criminal attacks on diplomatic missions in Kenya and
Tanzania. That situation made it essential to strengthen
international cooperation between States in order to take

practical, effective measures to prevent, combat and eradicate

terrorism in all its forms and manifestations. At the regional
level, judicial cooperation to combat terrorism, trafficking i

drugs and weapons and other related illegal activities hﬁgsol

been strengthened through the implementation of n

members of the European Union, which was another efficient
instrument in the fight against terrorism. All the States
members of the European Union had ratified the European
Police Office (Europol) Conventidi®®5, which had
entered into force on 1 October 1998. In its external relations,
the European Union continued to coordinate its efforts and
to collaborate with other States and groups of States in that
area.

United Nations bodies had adopted a number of
utions and 11 conventions against terrorism, most of

§Vhich had been signed and ratified by the States members of

bilateral and multilateral instruments for mutual assistan(l‘,ﬁe European Union, which pledged to try to ratify the rest of

and exchange of information.

5. In accordance with General Assembly resolutions
49/60, 51/210 and 52/165 and with other instruments adopted
at the inter-American level, including the Lima declaration
and plan of action to prevent, combat and eradicate terrorism

and the recent Panama City Declaration, the Group expressed

its firm intention to adopt the agreed measures and, in that
regard, welcomed the second Inter-American Specialized
Conference on Traffic in Narcotic Drugs, soon to be held in

Argentina. The Group was convinced that any action for the
prevention and suppression of terrorism taken at the
international level should be fully and completely consistent

with international law; for that reason, it supported any

measure which would further strengthen and clarify the

judicial framework on that issue. In that regard, he noted that
the countries members of the Group had supported the
establishment of an ad hoc committee to elaborate a draft
international convention for the suppression of acts of nuclear
terrorism; the latter contained innovative provisions in the

areas of cooperation and legal assistance.

6. Mr. Sucharipa (Austria), speaking on behalf of the
European Union, the associated countries Bulgaria, Cyprus,
the Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania,

Poland, Romania, Slovakia and Slovenia, and, in addition,
Iceland and Norway, said that the European Union reaffirmed

them by the year 2000. The General Assembly had adopted

a number of resolutions and declarations, in particular the
19941886 Declarations on Measures to Eliminate
International Terrorism, which represented an appropriate
framework for international cooperation in the fight against
terrorism. The States members of the European Union had
participated actively in the negotiations on the drafting of an
international convention for the suppression of acts of nuclear
terrorismin order to suppress the use of nuclear materials or
radioactive substances in terrorist acts, which would endanger
the life and health of untold numbers of people and of the
environment. Following intensive negotiations in the Ad Hoc
Committee and in the Working Group of the Sixtht€@mm
the text of the draft convention that appeared in annex | of
document A/C.6/53/L.4 had been prepared, and could be
regarded as generally acceptable. However, a number of
delegations had expressed concerns about certain provisions,
including the scope of application. The European Union
hoped that those concerns could soon be overcome, since the
convention, when concluded, would represent a further step

forward in combating terrorism.

8.  The European Union commended the approach taken
by the Ad Hoc Committee and suggested that existing gaps
shouldllbd fhile bearing in mind the possibility of
considering, in the future, the elaboration of a comprehensive

its unequivocal condemnation of terrorism in all its forms andonwention on international terrorism. In line with that

manifestations, its opposition to making concessions to
terrorist demands and its determination to prevent hostage-
takers from deriving any benefit whatsoever from their acts.
It also confirmed its steadfast determination to combat that
evil, since terrorist attacks in whatever form, for whatever
reason and by whomever committed were unjustifiable
criminal acts. The Union, as well as its member States
individually, had taken decisive action in the fight against
international terrorism. All the States members of the
European Union were parties to the 1977 European

approach, the European Union welcomed theifiaéxeh in

on the elaboration, within the framework of the United
Nations, of an international convention for the suppression
of terrorist financing, since one of the most effective ways of
combating terrorists was to cut off their funding. The Union
therefore proposed that the Ad Hoc Committee’s next step
should be to take up that project. It also supported the United
Kingdom proposal to hold a conference in London to move
forward with that initiative and to consider further
international action against teromdstaising. The

Convention on the Suppression of Terrorism1B06, they European Union thanked the Secretary-General for his report



A/C.6/53/SR.25

on measures to eliminate international terrorism. It also Countries was committed to ensuring that international
attached great importance to the information provided by the instruments adopted in that area enjoyed the widest possible
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), the support.

International Maritime Organization (IMO), the Council Oflll. Mr. Lavrov (Russian Federation) said that he firmly

Europe and the South Asian Association for Regiong : : !
. elieved that terrorism could be effectively combated onl
Cooperation (SAARC) on the status of the relevaqf1 y y

i it noted with satisfaction the decline i {oughthejointefforts of the international community and
conventions. It noted with satistaction the dectine In cases @gly; e measures adopted must be based exclusively on

unlawful interference with international civil aviation, 8Sternational law. The Russian Eederation did not accept the
reported by the International Civil Aviation Organization, ;jaiera| and extraterritorial use of force against terrorists

SC;/?\O)I’ ?tnd csmmlclanded the t(rjalgllng actl\{{lkt:es fcfart”edf?lé%d advocated instead practical international cooperation at
y the fatter. Equally commendable were the efiorts ot g, national, regional and global levels. That was precisely

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultur he course which the United Nations had taken, as manifested

Orgamzaﬂon (UNES(,:O) to reduge the mqt'lvatlon fofn the adoption of a number of major documents, such as the
terrorism through a variety of educational activities, and t 94 Declaration on Measures to Eliminate International

project of the Centre for International Crime Prevention t?errorism the 1996 Declaration to supplement the 1994
Iaungh ? major stu?y on the trootdcausets Ofttﬁ‘rr?r:'SLn andtBréclaration, which was aimed at preventing the granting of
practica meqsures 0 preven and counter | " h the hope ,?glrugee status to terrorists, and the International Convention
the compendium of national laws and regulations concerni the Suppression of Terrorist Bombings, which had been
terrorism would be published in the near future, the Europegaopted by the General Assembly at its previous session and

Union supported the Secretary-General’s request to thos"‘lgned by the Russian Federation on 12 January 1998.
States that had not yet done so to provide information on thel

national laws and regulations. Since only concerted action b¢- ~ The draft International Convention for the Suppression
the international community could win the battle again&f Acts of Nuclear Terrorism, which had been proposed by
terrorism, the European Union called upon all States that hte Russian Federation, was the first international legal
not yet done so to accede to all relevant treaties. instrument to combat terrorist activities that was designed as

a “pre-emptive instrument”. In his delegation’s view, the draft
9. Mr. Mapuranga (Zimbabwe), speaking on behalf of P P g

he M fNon-Alianed C i id th ith g(tﬁthwas sufficiently ripe for adoption by consensus during the
the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries, said that, althougly, e session of the General Assembly. That would also

substantial progress haq been madg in the preparation Ofg.'if\:e the United Nations the opportunity to start its work on
draft convention, some issues continued to be of concern er international legal instruments for suppressing other
the States members of the Movement, such as those re""‘trllt?gnifestations of terrorism. In that context, the Russian
to the preamble and to articles 1 and 4 ,Of the draft. StatEFderation welcomed the French proposal for the elaboration
members of the Movement had submitted a number & an international convention for the suppression of terrorist
proposals on those provisions, but they were not reﬂeCtedeHancing and India’s proposal for the elaboration of an

the draft, Itwoulld therefore be necessary to allow more tm?ﬁéernational convention that covered all aspects of terrorism.
for further consideration of the draft so that consensus cou

be reached on a text that took the interests of all States id3- The international community's efforts to combat
account. terrorism must be supplemented by the adoption of measures

. . . atthe regional and subregional levels. In that connection, the
10. The Movement of Non-Aligned Countries was f"mlyCommonweaIth of Independent States had adopted a

committed to adopting all appropriate measures to elimin ?ogramme of joint measures to combat organized crime and
international terrorism, as clearly demonstrated by the ¢ IE

her types of crime in its territory. On that basis, work had
made pythe Heads of Statg and Governmlent of the Movem I%tgun on the preparation of international agreements to
in the final document of their twelfth summit conference, hel

. . ombat organized crime, illicit arms trafficking and terrorism
in Durban, South Africa, on 2 and 3 September 1998. On th 1 aircraft and other means of transportation. In that regard,

occaston, they had _stress_ed the need to combat terrorsnl pyssian Federation welcomed the work being done by the
all its forms and manifestations regardless of the race, religi oup of Eight to give new impetus to international

or nationality of the victims or perpetrators of terrorism, an ooperation for the suppression of terrorism and, in

Pad e_mphisulzdbthat |ntefrnat!:)na!trc](:ﬁpergthnIto C?$Eﬂrticular, the important decisions on terrorism which the
errorism snouid be in conformity wi € principies o roup had adopted during its Summit at Birmingham, United

Charter of the United Nations, international law and releva%ngdom For its part, the Russian Federation had taken steps
international conventions. The Movement ofNon-Allgneg0 improve its domestic legislation and to bring it into



A/C.6/53/SR.25

compliance with the international obligations which it had  All of that confirmed that the Government of the United States
contracted. On 1 January 1997, the new Criminal Code of the had acted solely in its own interest when it launched the attack
Russian Federation had entered into force. In comparison with  in question.

earlier legislation, the new Code increased the numberﬁ Sudan had made every possible effort to establish a

!egal ”0”.“5 to compat terro_rlsm an_d broadened t falogue with the United States Government, which had
interpretation of that crime and its constituent elements. A

. - jected its call for a dialogue between the Presidents of the
July 1998, the federal act on the suppression of terrorism g

b dobted with & view to st thening th tiet . two countries and the establishment of ties of cooperation
een adoptedwith a viewto strengthening the anti-lerrorisigy, eon the security organs of the two countries. It had also
activities of the competent Russian authorities bo

q tcall q int tionallv. The Inter-d ; ¢ jected the invitation which had been sent to the State
omestically and internationally. The Inter-departmentaye ,, yment's Advisory Committee on Religious Freedom

Commission to Combat Terrorism, which coordinated th&broad to visit Sudan. And. above all. the Government of
efforts of State institutions in that field, was actively WorkingSudan had expelled O.sama, Bin Ladelin in 1996 to the place

Finally, practical solutions were being found to issues relatirmat had been chosen by the Government of the United States.
to the Russian Federation’s accession taltb88 Gnvention

for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety ¢6-  All of those attempts at cooperation had been made by
Maritime Navigation; the. 988 Protocol for the Suppression>udan prior to the attack on the Al-Shifa factory. After the
of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Fixed Platforms locate#trike, Sudan, in conformity with the Charter of the United
on the Continental Shelf; the 199106vention on the Nations, had demanded that a fact-finding mission should be
Marking of Plastic Explosives for the Purpose of Detectiorgstablished by the United Nations to investigate the

and the 1997 EuropeanoBvention on the Suppression ofdllegations concerning the factory’s production. Despite calls
Terrorism. from most of the world’s States, the United States was trying

to prevent the Security Council from discussing the proposal

14. Mr. Erwa (Sqdan) said t,h",’lt S.udan was continuing Itg, dispatch a fact-finding mission to Sudan. At the same time,
efforts to sign or ratify the remaining international agreements, < pressuring the Council to discuss during the current
for the suppression of terrorism which it had not yet signige

ifiod. Acti K b . be b onth the humanitarian situation in Sudan, when the
or ratified. ctlon taken FO combat terrorism must € baSebstruction of the factory had itself created a very difficult
on respect for international law. In that connection, th

M f Non-Alianed C . h ith th filumanitarian situation, in view of the fact that Sudan was a
ovement of Non-Aligned Countries, together with the;.y g country which faced other serious problems

Group. of African States, the_ Group of Arab States and tr&%\used by floods and the internal conflict in the south of the
Organization of the Islamic Conference had strongl o%mtry

condemned the aggression committed by the United States o
America against the Al-Shifa factory in Khartoum, whicht7. In short, Sudan doubted whether the United States was
produced pharmaceutical and veterinarggucts. There had seriously interested in combating terrorism. The victims of
been a conflicting response by the United States of Amerit2e Nairobi (Kenya) and Dar es Salaam (United Republic of
to the international community’s reaction. The United Statdgihzania) attacks were victims of acts of terrorism committed
Secretary of Defence had stated that the plant produd@dindividual criminals, but the attack on the Al-Shifa factory
biological and chemical weapons, but had later claimed tHa@d been an act of terrorism by a super-Power, namely, the
it produced only chemical weapons precursors. Moreover, thfited States of America. The international community
Secretary of Defence had himself stated that when the Unitgigould therefore also work to combat State terrorism.
States unleashed its missiles against the plant, it had not begn Mr. Alabrune (France) said that his delegation
aware that the plant produced medicines. Senior United Staggfiorsed the statement made by Austria on behalf of the
officials had stated that the factory was heavily guarded, bEtiropean Union. In order to combat the scourge of terrorism,
international media reports and others who had visited tgates should not onlyoedemn it in all its forms, but should
factory had later stated that it was lightly guarded. The sarmggso seek to eliminate worldwide the human and political
officials had said that the factory was financed by Osama Bifagedies which nourished it, to pursue the perpetrators of
Laden, only to acknowledge later that there was no diregdrrorist acts more effectively and to deny them refuge. To that
connection between the factory and Osama Bin Laden. Laséwd, in the framework of the Declaration on Measures to
a high official of the United States Government had declarggiminate International Terrorism, the General Assembly had
in The New York Timesf 21 September 1998 that therequested the Secretary-General to identify gaps that could
decision to target the Al-Shifa plant continued a tradition ¢fe addressed in order to develop further a comprehensive
taking action against Sudan based on inadequate intelligenggal framework of conventions dealing with international



A/C.6/53/SR.25

terrorism. In his report (A/51/336, para. 36), the Secretary- ngdom that it would convene an international meeting at
General hadinter alia, mentioned terrorist bombings and the end of the year, aimed at facilitating the debates in the Ad
terrorist fund-raising. Hoc Committee in the following year.

19. The Ad Hoc Committee established pursuantto General 22. The encouragotipns of many delegations gave
Assembly resolution 51/210 of 17 Decemld€96 had been rise to the hope that consensus wouleédehed on the

able to fill some of those gaps through the preparation in the inclusion of the item on terrorist financing in the mandate of
previous year of the International Convention for the the Committeel®99, a decision that would not affect
Suppression of Terrorist Bombings, which had been signed either the goal of negotiating a global convention on all
by 24 States, including France. In 1998 the Ad Hoc aspects of terrorismin the future, as India had proposed, or
Committee had prepared a draft internatiorabweention for  the holding of a world conference on terrorism, as Egypt had

the suppression of acts of nuclear terrorism on the basis ofa proposed.

particularly_welcome proposa! by the Russian Federation. TE%. His delegation hoped that in the following year the same
text submitted by the Chairman of the Committee WaSumber of meetings would be allocated for the work of the Ad

acceptable to his Government and he hoped that the Gen?_qal: Committee and the Working Group of the Sixth
Assembly would be able to adopt it by the end of the yearc o mittee as i1 997 and 1998, since the issue of terrorist

20. His delegation was further convinced that there was a financing deserved the same attention as the issues considered
need for the Ad Hoc Committee to continue its work in the in those two years. Moreover, diminishing the efforts to
following year, in accordance with the mandate set out in elaborate the legal instruments needed in the fight against
General Assembly resolution 51/210; in that regard, the terrorism would send the wridigapsignal. In the light

Minister for Foreign Affairs of France had proposed to the of the similarities between the draft submitted by his
General Assembly that the Committdesild negotiate at the  Government and the last two conventions elaborated by the
current session a convention against terrorist financing. The Ad Hoc Committee, it was to be hoped that the new
capacity for action of terrorist organizations depended largely negotiations would bear fruit within a time-frame similar to

on their financial means, and States could reaffirm their the previous ones.

determination to combat terrorism in all its forms b)é4 Mr. Kerma (Algeria) said that terrorism, the most

endeavouring to deprive them of;uch resources, or, at Ie‘asslstrious phenomenon resulting from the globalization of
to make such resources clearly illegal. There was currenflyi tions between societies and States. was assuming

agap mt.mternattlrc])nal IS.W 'tn(;[!:jat ntas?fect, sihce w;tefrfnaf[!on precedented proportions; it was a threat to the peace and
conventions on e subject did not ofter means of etiective ability of nations, none of which was immune to its impact.

tracing those who supplied funds to terrorists. For that reason,
his delegation had submitted a draft internatiormivention 25. The awareness of the international community that
for the Suppression of terrorist ﬁnancing (A/C6/53/9)terr0r|st Violence, whatever its forms and motiVeS, was

Among the main features of the draft were: the definition dpadmissible, had been shaped by the Declaration on
financing and the means envisaged for combating activitideasures to Eliminate International Terrorism and

of that type, for example, establishing offences and makig§engthened by the further decision taken by the General
them punishable by effective penalties; the establishment f§sembly to make the question of international terrorism one
States of jurisdiction over such offences; the detention 6f its highest priorities and to establish the Centre for

perpetrators for the purpose of prosecution or extradition; Hﬂernational Crime Prevention. In tak|ng those deCiSionS, the
appeal to States to afford one another the greatest measure®feral Assembly had undoubtedly given a new impetus to
assistance, without claiming privileged communications éhe fight against international terrorism and had clearly

bank secrecy; and the adoption by States parties ggmonstrated a determination to break with the policies of the
appropriate measures to allow for identification, freezing d¥aSt.

seizure of property and funds used for committing thgg. That new view of terrorism, and the measures proposed
offences referred to in the convention. to deal with it, constituted a decisive step towards the

21. His delegation would be grateful if comments could bdoption by the international community of a new, broader
made on the draft; it was considering the possibility gtnd more exemplary form of cooperation in the fight against
submitting, early in 1999, a revised version taking intéhe terrorist scourge. International cooperation and solidarity
account the comments made, which could serve as a basis&re the only guarantees of success in the fight against a
the work of the Ad Hoc Committee. In that connection, hEhenomenon which hampered the development of friendly
noted with satisfaction the announcement by the Unitéglations between States. Accordingly, mention should be



A/C.6/53/SR.25

made of such notable achievements as the adoption in the the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Civil
previous year of the International Convention for the Aviation (Montre#d/1) and the @nvention on the
Suppression of Terrorist Bombings, the adoption by the Prevention and Punishment of Crimes against Internationally
League of Arab States of a convention against terrorism and  Protected Persons, including Diplomatic Agents (New York,
the ongoing efforts of the Organization of the Islamic 1973). Pakistan was also a party to the regiosaiton
Conference to elaborate a convention with the same aims. It on the suppression of terrorism of the South Asian
was to be hoped that the draft international convention for the  Association for Regional Cooperation.

suppression of acts of nuclear terrorism would be adoptedsiB His delegation believed that the international

1998. convention on the suppression of acts of nuclear terrorism

27. Terrorism, which up to then had been nourished and should be a comprehensive international instrument, rather
fostered by the lenient policies of some States and the abuse than a protocol to the Convention on the Physical Protection
or complaisant use of the right of asylum, was a global of Nuclear Material or any other international convention. It
phenomenon requiring a global response strategy. One of the  was with that positive approach that Pakistan had considered
central elements of the measures to be adopted by the the various provisions of the draft convention, and it
international community should be the establishment of an  concurred with many of the provisions in the revised text.
international legal framework, particularly the elaboration of Nonetheless, it had reservations about the incorporation in
an international convention which would deal with terrorist the text of some of the provisions of the International
acts in a comprehensive and integrated manner, going beyond Convention for the Suppression of Terrorist Bombings. For
their specifities and pecularities. That was one of the basic example, the exception granted to armed forces and the
objectives of the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries, definition of armed forces contained in the International
which, since the Durban summit, had repeatedly stressed the Convention reappeared in article 4, paragraph 2; article 1,
urgency of the conclusion and implementation of a general paragraph 6; and the last preambular paragraph of the draft
convention of that type. In addition, the holding of an convention. The current formulation sanctioned State
international conference with a view to providing the terrorism, which was the most ignoble form of terrorism. The
international community with guidelines in dealing with Movement of Non-Aligned Countries, at its twelfth summit
terrorism at all levels would make a decisive contributionto meeting held in Durban (South Africa), had once again
the achievement of that objective. condemned the use of State power for repression and violence

28. Mr. Kamal (Pakistan) said that, as his country hag9ainst ) innpcent c_ivilians s_trgggl_ing agai_nst foreign
been a victim of acts of terrorism, including transbounda CUP"?“'OT‘ in exercise of their mahenab_le right of self-
terrorism, his delegation understood perfectly th etermination. The current formulation of article 4, paragraph
consequences which the threat of international terrorism hélg excluded from the scope of the_ convention act|v_|t|es
for the international community. His country practised |s|an1r!n<_j(a_r_taken by n_htary’ for_ces, even if they were terrorist

a religion of universal peace and brotherhood and away%cft'v't'es' In Pakistan’s view, only those activities of armed
life. Its message of love and salvation of humanit rces which were undertaken pursuant to Chapters VIl and

characterized the attitudes and policies of Pakistan and thill ©f the Charter of the United Nations could be excluded

way in which human beings related to each otheflO™M the scope of the convention.

Accordingly, his Government condemned terrorismin allits  31. The revised text of article 13, paragraphs 1 and 5 also
forms and manifestations, regardless of its motives, and incorporated the provisions of article 9, paragraphs 1 and 5
reaffirmed its full commitment to fulfilling the obligations of the International Convention for the Suppression of
incumbent on it in accordance with the international legal Terrorist Bombings. Under those provisions, States Parties
instruments on terrorism to which it was a party. would undertake to include the offences set forth in article 2

29. Pakistan was adopting internal security measures Aryextraditable offences in any extradition treaty concluded
had cooperated extensively with the international communﬁ)?;wsen the_”f' befo]{e”the_entry Into ZJ_r_ce of the_ cogvennon
to eliminate international terrorism. It had also taken steps fgpd the provisions of all existing extradition treaties between

the trial and punishment of hijackers and had extended faifates Parties would be deemed to be modified as between
cooperation to international organizations such as ICA(tf]_Ose States Parties to the extent that they were incompatible

Pakistan was a party to the Convention on Offences a}é'ét::_the convI(?jnUon. Becaus;e] of IE)T domestlc_la\;v co dn_stramtsl,
Certain Other Acts Committed on Board Aircraft (Tokyoi?"z1 Eté'ml C‘i‘; l_EOt as_stjmlelt feﬁ |Igat|ons _st|pu| ?:te n a_rt|c €
1963), the ©nvention for the Suppression of Unlawful=~" rticle 15, like article 11 of the International Convention

Seizure of Aircraft (The Hague, 1970), thevention for for the Suppression of Terrorist Bombings, was incompatible



A/C.6/53/SR.25

with the laws of Pakistan, which recognized only offences of 34. Agreement must now be reached on a legal definition
a political nature. of terrorism which would codify the issue in a comprehensive

32. Pakistan’s most crucial reservation concerned artidTéa”ner'l '”h resolutions ?0/61 and ‘:}6/51;' the General
18 of the draft convention, which incorporated the obligatiorfdSS€MPly had consistently stressed that all States should
imposed by the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation ofNucIeaCront”b_Ute to th_e progressive elimination of the causes
Weapons. Pakistan had therefore proposed amendmentdgerying terrorism. it had also urged States to pay special
the relevant provisions, since it was not in a position to agrégention to all situations, including colonialism, racism and
that a role should be accorded to IAEA in article 1gS'tuations involving mass and flagrant violations of human
paragraphs 3 and 6. International treaties should be fz{i'lghts a!’ld fundamenta! fre_edom_s and th_ose |nvoIV|_ng alien
equitable and non-discriminatory, since it was only then thgfcupation, that might give rise to international terrorism and
they could achieve universal adherence. As curren%?danger international peace and security. In that respect, the
formulated, article 18 distinguished between States Parti gmmittee should pay due attention to the final document of

on the basis of their differing obligations and status undél?e su_mmlt m_eetmg of the _Movement of N_on-Allgned
another international treaty and, in doing so, would on ountries, held in Durban, which had once again reaffirmed

further consolidate the existing discrimination between tae principle of the legitimacy of the struggle of peoplesler

two sets of States. Pakistan also found it inappropriate thg(&l_omal or ah_en domination an(_j fo_re|gn occupatpn for
under article 25 of the draftamvention (analogous to articlenat'onal liberation and self-determination, and had reiterated

22, paragraph 1 of the International Convention for thtgat that struggle did not constitute terrorism, a position which

Suppression of Terrorist Bombings), only 22 ratificationgakiStan supported. The final document had also called once

would be required for the entry into force of the conventior?gain for a definition of terrorism to differentiate it from that

The number of ratifications should be at least 60, a ﬁgurlggitimate struggle. In that spir'it, Pakistan fully supported the
which had been established recently in the Statute of tﬁ@” of 'the Durba!'l summit for the convening of an
International Criminal Court. Pakistan was in favour of thE‘t?ma“O”"?" summit confergnce uqder the auspices of the
proposal put forward by the Syrian Arab Republic that thgnlted Nathn§ so that .the international communlty cou.Id
preamble should take a comprehensive view of internatiorfgfmmate a Jo'r,'t’ orgr_e\mzed response to terrorism in all its
terrorism, since that was a valid suggestion which had be@ﬁms and manifestations.

drawn from other international treaties already concluded.  35. Pakistan would not be a party to any attempt to sanction

33. His delegation was aware that the positions Siate terrorism, particularly when it was perpetrated against

delegations differed on the points he had highlighted. In thggtional liberation mpvements. That was a matter of the
respect, it fully supported the view expressed in th tm_ost concern to his Government gnd to the pec_)p.le 9f
Committee by the representative of Zimbabwe on behalf gplgstan, who obgerved the perpetration of such pOlICIBS' |.n

the Movement of Non-Aligned Counties that action on tnhidian-held Kashmir every day. The struggle of the Kashmiri

draft convention should be delayed pending furthé’rec’ple for their inalienable rlght to self-determ!nat|on c_ould
consultations. His delegation hoped that, in its final form, th'éOt b_e.suppressed by re,so”'”g to the COIQ”"'{‘I practice of
convention would clearly reflect the concerns expressed BYrcising control over their destiny and aspirations through
Pakistan and other countries so that it would be fair, balancglfte-SPonsored terrorism.

and non-discriminatory; his delegation reserved the rightto 3@r. Al-Tani (Qatar) said that his delegation

make further proposals with regard to the text currently under condemned terrorism, which was contrary to Islam and its
consideration and other texts which might be submitted in the  principles of tolerance atitlitazha threat to international

future. Since one convention had already been approved amscep and security; the international community must

a second was under consideration, the time had come to agree therefore carry out concerted action to combat that blight and
on the modalities of the last part of the Ad Hoc Coittee’s  eliminate its causes. In that respect, the first Arab convention
mandate pursuant to paragraph 9 of General Assembly tocombatterrorism, of 1998, demonstrated that the Islamic
resolution 51/210 “to address means of further developing a world rejected terrorism and defended the principles of the
comprehensive legal framework of conventions dealing with  Charter of the United Nations and the Charter of the League
international terrorism”. In that respect, Pakistan was of Arab States, and the norms of international law.
considering the proposal put forward by France for
international convention for the suppression of terrori% .dr
financing.

For its part, the international community also needed
aw up an appropriate convention. However, an
international conference must first be held, under the auspices
of the United Nations, to define the concept of terrorism. The



A/C.6/53/SR.25

Secretary-General of the United Nations should submit a
report on the subject to the General Assembly at its fifty-
fourth session.

38. Itwas essential to distinguish between terrorism and the
legitimate struggle of the peoples for independence, territorial
integrity, national unity and liberation from foreign colonial
domination in conformity with international law. It was

43.

of mass destruction and the threat to make use of such
weapons must therefore be prohibited in that provision.

His delegation believed that burying nuclear or
radioactive wasitd e regarded as a crime against
humanity and against the environméwoidehtherefore

be included in article 2, paragraph 2 (b), of the draft
convention.

therefore regrettable that, on some occasions, definitions WeL  The concept of terrorism was not defined in the draft
drawn up which were based on political considerations Wh°§8nvention. He would have liked the Working Group to have

purpose was to brand certain States as terrorists.

39. Mr. Al-Akwaa (Yemen) said that terrorism was a
threat to stability, democracy, and economic and cultural
development in all countries; it had particularly serious
consequences in developing countries, because th&z'
economic infrastructure, public institutions and securit‘y

defined that concept so as to avoid any ambiguity and so as
to ensure that it was in keeping with the Charter of the United

Nations and the rules of international law governing relations
between States.

Mr. Kyi (Myanmar) said that his Government had

epeatedly expressed its support for measures to eliminate

organs were so fragile. The international community muﬁ]iternational terrorism since the relevant item had been

therefore take coordinated action to combat that evil.

40. His country reiterated its strong condemnation of

terrorist acts perpetrated by organizations, individuals or
States, whatever their motives or objectives. It was adapting
its legislation to take account of the international agreements
to which it was a party and would participate in international

efforts to combat terrorism. Furthermore, his Government was
considering acceding to other international conventions in the
field.

41.
implement the provisions on political asylum contained in t

included in the agenda of the United Nations General

Assemblyin 1972. He therefore welcomed the fact that at its
fifty-second session, the Assembly had adopted resolution
52/165, in which it called upon States to enact, as
appropriate, domestic legigatsaary to implement the

provisions of the relevant conventions and protocols, to
ensure that the jurisdiction of their courts enabled them to
bring to trial the perpetrators of terrorist acts and to cooperate

with and provide support and assistance to other States and

His delegation appealed urgently to all States {Slevantmtgrnatlonal and regional organizations to that end.
Hdis delegation therefore fully supported and commended the

conventions to which they were parties and in othéﬂ’ork of the Working Group on the draft convention on the

instruments; in particular, they should implement paragrapﬁ
2, 3 and 5 of the Declaration to Supplement the 1994
Declaration on Measures to Eliminate International
Terrorism, which was annexed to General Assembly
resolution 51/210, whose aim was to prevent terrorists from
seeking the protection of asylum law and refugee status.
Moreover, terrorists must be denied sources of financing,

which was why his delegation regarded as acceptable the text

of the draft international convention for the suppression of
terrorist financing (A/C.6/53/9), prepared by France.

42. With respect to the draft international convention f

gppression of nuclear terrorism.

4idr. Cho (Republic of Korea) said that, having been a

victim of flagrant acts of international terrorism, his country
strongly condemned all acts of terrorism as criminal and
unjustifiable. Terrorism did not recognize national frontiers
and was not linked to any particular civilization, religion or
geographical area. Given the pernicious effects of terrorism,

it was logical that the General Assembly should step up its

efforts to strengthen international cooperation to eradicate

that scourge. That difficult but essential task had been given

f new momentum as a result of the 1994 Declaration on

the suppression of acts of nuclear terrorism, he said th easures to Eliminate International Terrorism and the 1996

under the last preambular paragraph, military forces wePee

claration to Supplement the 1994 Declaration, which had

outside the framework of the convention because they Wéqgen followed by General Assembly resolution 51/210 on

governed by other rules of international law. Howevef"
international law was not clear on the issue of the use
nuclear weapons; the advisory opinion of the Internationg

easures
g}ternational Convention for the Suppression of Terrorist
pmbings and the current draft convention for the

to eliminate international terrorism, the

Court of Justice on the subject should therefore be taken ingPpPression of acts of nuclear terrorism, for all of which his

account. Furthermore, in article 4, paragraph 2, of the dr
convention, no limit was set on the use of nuclear weapons
by armed forces during an armed conflict. The use of weapons

ggpuntry reaffirmed its strong support.

47. Theinternational community was facing new realities.
The threat that nuclear terrorism represented for the peoples



A/C.6/53/SR.25

of the world and the international community exceeded by far Committee. The international community should also
the dangers that conventional terrorist acts entailed, sinceiitdertake in-depth studies of the root causes of the rise and
could have a devastating effect on peace and security. His  development of international terrorism and of its social basis
country therefore welcomed the outcome of the intensive so as to gradually reduce and eliminate terrorist acts.

nego_tiations held in September and Optober 1998 and China had ratified or acceded to many international
convinced that the current draforvention represented a.onventions against international terrorism, joined

positive development with respect to the Internat'on?l'kternational organizations which dealt with the question, and

_commumtys endeavo_ur; to prepare a universally accep grticipated in international legislative activities such as the
instrument to curb or eliminate the threat of nuclear terroris otiations in the Ad Hoc Committee on the international

. e
There were, however, a number of issues that needed to ??vention for the suppression of terrorist bombings and the

clar|_f|ed _e_md settled. For gxamplg,_ the Issue of the NOfKternational convention for the suppression of acts of nuclear
applicability of the convention to military activities had yerterrorism. It had always conscientiously fulfilled its

o bE §ett|3d. It:urthermotrhe,tth COTgint'of? al'?o neeglcfd furt@f&%rnational obligations and had participated actively in
work in order o ensure that it would be eliective and to aVoy ateral and multilateral cooperation projects aimed at

overlapping with existing agreements. preventing and punishing international terrorist crimes. In

48. His country wished to emphasize the role that could be particular, it had strengthened its cooperationnitasc

played by IAEA in implementing the convention, given itsnvblved in investigations, the collection of evidence, the
experience with nuclear matters and, in particular, its exchange of information and extradition. It had also perfected
involvement in the process of adopting and implementing the  its domestic laws and regulations to provide a legal basis for
Convention on the Physical Protection of Nuclear Material, efforts to prevent and suppress international terrorism.

which assigned to IAEA a set of functions that made it intgl Mr. Mwakawago (United Republic of Tanzania) said

a focal point for consultations with a view to eNSUrNgnat his delegation associated itself with the statement made

crc])opefratlog al,nd c%orrc]ilnatr;on n nuclefa:'rb\rgittek: S- :—élsbcc;ulr;tw the representative of Zimbabwe on behalf of the Movement
therefore believed that the views o shouid be Tu ¥JfNon-AIigned Countries, with the sentiments expressed to

reflected in future debates on the draft convention; it alstﬂe Secretary-General in connection with his report on
hoped that article 7'_ paragraph_s 1 and 2, and article ]r’?leasures to eliminate international terrorism (A/53/314) and
paragraph 6, concerning the function of IAEA would be ke%e statement made by Mr. Kirsch, Chairman of the Working

as they were worded in the Work|ng G_roup’s repgrt. HI%roup of the Sixth Committee. On 7 Augud€98, his country
delegaﬂon would play.an active part in cqmpletlng thﬁ d, for the first time, been the scene of a major terrorist
drafting of the ponvent|on for the suppression of acts Qltack aimed at the Embassy of the United States of America.
.nuclear. terrorism ar?d, supported unreservedly thes Goyernment was grateful for the financial and material
mternlatlonlal com_mumtys efforts to combat ngcleag pported extended to it by many Governments following the
terror!sm,_ just as it had supported all condemnations cident. International cooperation had been decisive in the
terrorism in the past. investigation into persons suspected of involvement in the
49. Mr. Gao Feng (China) said that his Government had  attack. The Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI) of the
always opposed international terrorism in all its forms, United States deserved special mention in that regard.
whether committed by a State, an organization, a group Or8Y  His country’s extremely limited capacity in that area
individual. At the same time, it was opposed to any acti
taken with a view to combating international terrorism th

violated the basic.principles Of”.“er.”a‘?ona' I‘T’“N by infringin easures to Eliminate International Terrorism, annexed to
upon the §overg|gnty and t.err|tor|al mteg_rlty of Sta.tes aNCeneral Assembly resolution 49/60, which called for “a
interfering in the internal affairs of States. His delegation was, o\ of existing possibilities within the United Nations

in favour of enhancing international cooperation to combg stem for assisting States in organizing workshops and
international terrorism and was therefore pleased to note ttp tining courses on combating crimes connected with

the Ad Hoc Committee establishedder General Assembly.

lution 51/210 had leted the draft i ) a)ternationalterrorism”. For that reason, his delegation noted
resolution ad completed the dra mternatlo_n ith concern that, according to the report of the Secretary-

convention for the suppression of acts of nuclear terroris@, - oral (A/53/314)

%hderscored the importance of examining urgent measures
implement paragraph 10 (d) of the Declaration on

10



A/C.6/53/SR.25

the root causes of terrorism and on practical measures to
prevent and counter it, including training.

53. His delegation would support continued efforts t

and Muslims. The target was terror, as had been clearly stated

by the President of the United States in his statement to the
general Assembly and in his statement shortly after the strike

prepare a draft convention for the suppression of acts %qthe pharmaceutical factory in Khartoum. The United States
f flict was with terrorism. It was not based on race, gender,

nuclear terrorism which would be acceptable to all States a ! . o X /
ngtlonal origin or religion, but simply on the abhorrent, illegal

ﬁ@d murderous nature of the acts in question.

welcomed the proposals regarding the elaboration of
convention on the suppression of terrorist financing and t
convening of an international conference on terrorism. With
regard to the draft convention for the suppression of terrorist
bombings, his delegation was of the opinion that article 4,
paragraph 2, raised issues which required further
examination. Lastly, efforts should be redoubled to reach an

5Wlr. Mohamed (Sudan), speaking in exercise of the

right of reply, said that he had hoped that the representative
of the United States would respond to the different queries
that had been raised in his delegation’s statement. In view of
the fact that the Sudan had tried to hold a serious political

internationally acceptable definition of the concept of dliie, at the highest level of the Securitguicil, without

terrorism, since that was essential if an effective international
strategy was to be developed. In the meantime, his delegation
would continue to support all efforts made to criminalize such
conduct.

54. Ms. Willson (United States of America), speaking in
exercise of the right of reply, said that the representative

the Sudan had devoted the greater part of his statementtoa 58.

complaint against the United States and had focused his
attention on its rejection of dialogue with the Sudan. He had,
however, failed to recognize that actions spoke louder than
words. It was to be hoped that the Sudan would cease its
support for terrorists and terrorist groups and thus comply
with the admonition in the Declaration on Measures to
Eliminate International Terrorism that States should not
permit their territory to be used for the preparation of terrorist

acts. The measures to which the representative of the Su an

any preconditions, he wondered why the United States had
rejected its initiatives and continued to make unfounded
charges that the territory of the Sudan was open to terrorism

and terrorists. The Sudan wished to assure the United States,
in particular, and the international community in general that
thyose charges were without any basis.

For civilized countries and Members of the United

Nations, it was normal to resort to the United Nations to settle
disputes. Deviation from that procedure could have very
serious consequences; for instance, it could result in acts of

armed aggression with sophisticated weapons. If the objective
ofthe United States in its armed aggression against the Sudan
had been to combat terrorism, it had not been able to achieve
that objective; it had, instead, only placed further obstacles
in the way of the international community.

His delegation wished to reaffirm that the way to resolve

had referred had been carried out only after repeated effog% problem was to have recourse to wisdom and to the

to convince the Government of the Sudan to shut down tm-:h
terrorist activities. The United States had acteddoordance
with the right of self-defence, confirmed in the Charter of th

ited Nations agreements and conventions and the
instruments which the Organization was trying to elaborate.
Bther methods had no basis. The use of a double standard and

United Nations, to putan end to the production of potentiallys, ;| gical measures against Muslims and Islam were also

lethal chemical weapons.

55. With regard to the complaint that there had been
fact-finding mission to investigate the incident, she said that
the United States believed that such a mission would be
useless, given the passage of time, the severe flooding in
Khartoum and the fact that the site had not been protected to
allow for scientific evaluation. The Sudan’s call for a fact-
finding mission was an attempt to divert attention from the
real issue: its support for terrorism. If the Government of the
Sudan was truly interested in demonstrating to the
international community that it was not involved in the
development of chemical weapons, it should accede to the
Convention on Chemical Weapons.

56. Finally, she said that she completely rejected the
statement that the actions of the United States targeted Islam

a cause of great concern.

e meeting rose at 1 p.m.

11



